
           

Library Board
Regular Meeting

  
  

September 17, 2024 | 6:30 p.m.
 

Hamilton Library Program Room
3700 S. Arizona Avenue
Chandler, AZ 85248
 

  

 
  

Board Members
Elizabeth Brizel
Parker McCarthy
Michael McElhany
Alexis Merritt
Jennifer Pawlik
Faith Risolo
Arman Sidhu
 

 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is
hereby given to the members of the Library Board and to the general public that the Library
Board will hold a REGULAR MEETING open to the public on Tuesday, September 17, 2024,
at 6:30 p.m., at Hamilton Library Program Room, 3700 S. Arizona Avenue, Chandler, AZ
85248. One or more Board Members may be attending by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and
services by contacting the City Clerk's office at (480) 782-2181(711 via AZRS). Please make
requests in advance as it affords the City time to accommodate the request. 

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.  

Page 1 of 3 Library Board



Library Board
Regular Meeting Agenda - September 17, 2024

 
           

Call to Order/Roll Call
 

Unscheduled Public Appearances
Members of the audience may address any item not on the agenda. State Statute prohibits the Board or
Commission from discussing an item that is not on the agenda, but the Board or Commission does listen to your
concerns and has staff follow up on any questions you raise.
 

Briefing
 

1. City Capital Project Funding/Bond Election Discussion led by Dawn Lang, Deputy City
Manager / Chief Financial Officer

 

2. Library Manager's Report
 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the Board or Commission, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

3. May 21, 2024 Library Board Minutes
  Move Library Board to approve the minutes of the May 21, 2024 Library Board meeting.
 

4. Chandler Library Board 2025 Meeting Dates
  Move Library Board to approve the 2025 Chandler Library Board meeting dates. 
 

Discussion
 

5. Board member Merritt has requested the librarian in charge of reviewing the
suggested purchases can speak to their exact process and timeframe used. How
many suggested books have been successfully purchased in the past few years by
the current vendors, how many are declined, and what options are there if the vendor
does not offer the book, but they are readily available elsewhere?

  

 

6. Board member Merritt would like to understand the process for purchasing popular   

Page 2 of 3 Library Board



6. Board member Merritt would like to understand the process for purchasing popular
books that have numerous holds on them? How often is the list reviewed? Is there a
formula or does it depend on forecasting sustained popularity? Is it the same for
books, ebooks, and audiobooks or is this dependent on the Cloud Library
subscription? Is there an established goal to keep people from waiting months or a
year for a book? 

  

 

7. Board member Merritt would like to propose having a standalone shelf at every library
branch for patrons to enjoy a yarn/craft/fabric exchange. It is like the puzzle swap at
Basha where anyone can take or donate an item. In the Spokane Washington Library
branches they all have these shelves and also a puzzle shelf. Board member Merritt
loves the idea of providing more value and encouraging craftiness or discovering a
new hobby to our patrons. Please read the article where Board member Merritt
discovered the idea. Yarn & Fabric Exchange - Spokane Library 

  

 

Member Comments/Announcements
 

Calendar
 

8. The next regular meeting will be held on Tuesday, November 19, 2024 at 6:30 p.m.,
in the Sunset Library Monsoon Room, 4930 W. Ray Rd. Chandler, AZ 85226.

  

 

9. The next Friends of the Library Board meeting will be held on Tuesday, October 8,
2024 at 1:00 p.m., in the Downtown Library Copper Conference Room 254, 22 S.
Delaware St. 85225.

  

 

Information Items
 

Adjourn
 

Page 3 of 3 Library Board

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.spokanelibrary.org/yarn-fabric-exchange/__;!!LTf3loafTa6bpKQ!aTxOwDkYoD_2yFNrtLG4W3tATKXAaOnsfxZB2xg9uTAP997EAr2E7XcGta8k8rkEUz8sj92WsA5zzuGrAcNuXeMh1HlqgXK61AsA$


ITEM  1 

Library Board      Community Services
       

Date: 09/17/2024
To: Library Board
From: Courtney Allen, Management Analyst
Subject:City Capital Project Funding/Bond Election Discussion led by Dawn Lang,

Deputy City Manager / Chief Financial Officer

Subject:
City Capital Project Funding/Bond Election Discussion led by Dawn Lang, Deputy
City Manager / Chief Financial Officer

Agenda Item Title:
City Capital Project Funding/Bond Election Discussion led by Dawn Lang, Deputy
City Manager / Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Bond Exploratory Committee Election Process 
Board and Commission PPT Capital Funding_Bond Election 
CIP bond only for BC 



 
 
 
 
Why bonds? 

• A bond election is the means by which the residents of the City of Chandler provide 
authorization for the city to issue bonds to fund large capital projects that are part of our 
well-defined Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 

• Bonded debt is the primary mechanism established by State statute that 
enables municipalities to build, maintain, and replace public assets and 
infrastructure.  

• Chandler issues tax-exempt bonds to fund almost 70% of the projects in 
the CIP.  

• Chandler’s interest rate on its bonds is low due to the City’s well-managed debt program 
and superior AAA bond ratings; the highest rating given.  

 
Why would the city want to look at adding additional authorization? 

• The need for a bond election is due to the existing authorization being insufficient to fully 
fund the infrastructure needs in the CIP.  

• The depletion of the funding has occurred at a more rapid pace than 
anticipated when costing projects prior to the 2021 bond election (the last 
time authorization was obtained), mainly due to significant inflation in 
capital project costs and some new project needs added in the updated 
10-year CIP. 

• Existing authorization is depleted beginning FY 2025-26 for Police, FY 2026-27 for Streets 
and Parks, and FY 2028-29 for Fire.   
 

What is the role of the Bond Exploratory Committee? 
• Evaluate capital project needs in the Chandler 
• Determining which projects are priorities, and ensure bond authorization 

is available to allow the city to sell bonds to fund projects 
• Recommend to either move forward, or not, with a bond election for specific projects or 

project groups/categories that are planned 
 
What would the bond authorization recommendation look like? 

• Bond authorization is grouped into categories of spending such as the following evaluated 
for the 2021 bond election with subcommittees discussing projects in their assigned areas 

o Park and Recreation/Community Services  
o Public Safety/Police and Fire 
o Public Works/Street, Transit and Water/Wastwater 
o Municipal Facilities 
o Information Technology (did not request authorization) 
o Airport (did not request authorization) 

Bond Exploratory Committee/Election Process 
2024-2025 



• The Bond Exploratory Steering Committee (made up of chairs from each subcommittee) 
with the help of the Finance Subcommittee, makes recommendations to the Mayor and 
Council. 

 
What would the Bond Exploratory Committee time commitment be?  

• The Steering Committee and subcommittees would kick-off in late September 2024. 
• Each subcommittee would begin meeting bi-weekly or monthly during the 

months of October and November to review and prioritize project needs, 
then formulate a recommendation to the Steering Committee. 

• Subcommittee recommendations would be reviewed with the Steering 
Committee who would deliberate in December and January for final 
incorporation into a recommendation brought to Mayor & Council in February or March.  

• Call for Election must be by May 8, 2025. 
 

 



Capital Project Funding
Bond Election Discussion



Agenda
“What is a Bond” Video from 2021 Bond Election

https://youtu.be/x-gEyz6Y1wc?si=BRnpBsb8YRLO5ei-

2025-2034 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

Capital Plan Inflation Impacts

General Obligation (GO) Bond Authorization Status

Bond Election History and Timelines

Council Direction for Next Steps

https://youtu.be/x-gEyz6Y1wc?si=BRnpBsb8YRLO5ei-


Strategic Framework  
Capital Needs in All Areas

Focus Areas 
•Economic Vitality

•Sustainability and Technology

•Connectivity

•Neighborhoods

•Quality of Life

•Community Safety



2025-2034 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

$2,488,884,031
Total 10-year CIP is funded as follows

7% 
Grants

68.4% 
Bond 

Funded

22% 
Current 

Revenues/
Fund Balance

1.9% 
System 

Development 
Fees



Capital Plan Inflation Impacts

Construction 
Price Index’s 
new normal

Construction 
Costs continue 
to go up, just 

not as fast

Data source: The Mortenson Construction Cost Index is calculated quarterly by pricing a representative non-residential 
construction project in geographies throughout the country.



GO Bond Authorization

Bond Authorization usage higher than anticipated and will be exhausted by FY 2025-26 for Police, 2026-27 for Streets 
and Parks, and FY 2028-29 for Fire.  Additional Bond Authorization needed to continue capital program in these areas.

Type of Voter 
Approved Debt

Available 
Authorization 
After 2021 & 

2023 Bond 
Sales

Fall 2025
 Bond Sale

Remaining 
Authorization

Fall 2027
Bond Sale

Remaining 
Authorization

Parks/Recreation/
Museum/Arts 52,130,000$    (40,930,000)$     11,200,000$    (54,825,000)$      (43,625,000)$       
Streets 98,681,000      (72,725,000)       25,956,000$    (75,625,000)        (49,669,000)$       
Public Safety- Police 55,340,000      (55,340,000)       -$                   (17,000,000)        (17,000,000)$       
Public Safety- Fire 15,181,000      -                      15,181,000$    (3,300,000)          11,881,000$        
Airport 494,000            -                      494,000$          -                       494,000$             
Public Buildings
(Facilities) 31,050,000      (7,100,000)         23,950,000$    (9,000,000)          14,950,000$        
Stormwater 624,000            -                      624,000$          (300,000)              324,000$             
Library 3,680,000         -                      3,680,000$       -                       3,680,000$          
Subtotal 257,180,000$ (176,095,000)$  81,085,000$    (160,050,000)$   (78,965,000)$      
Landfill 4,935,000         -                      4,935,000$       -                       4,935,000$          
Public Buildings 9,960,000         (6,000,000)         3,960,000$       -                       3,960,000$          
Water/Wastewater -                     -                      -$                   -                       -$                      
Total 272,075,000$ (182,095,000)$  89,980,000$    (160,050,000)$   (70,070,000)$      

GO Bonds 
cannot be 

issued without 
residents 

authorizing 
this first



GO Bond 10-Year CIP Projects

Refer to Handout

GO Bond Funded Projects ($626M) and Related Bond Authorization

• Summarized by bond category (navy blue lines)
• Projects not highlighted will use existing bond authorization 
• Projects highlighted in yellow need additional bond authorization to complete ($395M)
• Supports new and existing infrastructure



Bond Election History

The City of Chandler has had 
great success with residents 
voting to approve bond 
authorization to support the 
capital plan. Since 2000 the 
City has held 4 bond 
elections.  All with significant 
education/outreach.

The table shows the bond 
authorization amounts 
approved in each category 
since 2000.



Previous 2021 Bond Election Results

73.14% Yes

65.69% Yes69.33% Yes

73.22% Yes68.24% Yes Council 
direction was to 

not increase 
secondary 

property tax 
rate



Previous 49 Member 
Bond Exploratory Election Committee

Purpose of Committee

Would 
recommend 

bond 
authorization 

needed for 2025 
Bond Election



Bond Exploratory Sample Committee 
Timeline

Committee selected 

Aug.-Sep. 2024

Kick-off begins

Sep.-Oct. 2024

Committee meetings 
take place

Oct.–Nov. 2024

Final Review with Finance 
Sub-committee in 
December 2024

Dec. 2024

Recommendation 
approved by Committee

Jan. 2025

Draft report prepared 

Jan. - Feb. 2025

Committee chair reports 
to Mayor and Council on 
recommendation and 
presents executive 
report 

Feb. - Mar. 2025

Call for Bond Election by 
May 8, 2025, for 
November 4, 2025, 
election

May 8, 2025



Who is in 
“The Same 
Boat” with 
Chandler?

Chandler

Glendale
2025

Buckeye 
2024

Mesa
2024

Gilbert
2025-26?

Phoenix
2023

Tempe
2024

Scottsdale
TPT- Nov

Surprise
2023



Council Direction

 Begin outreach prior to formulation of a 

Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee

 Report back any feedback prior to Council 

decision on forming a Citizen Bond 

Exploratory Committee



Questions



2025-2034 Capital Improvement Program- GO Bond Funded Programs 
Bond Election Options
Yellow highlighted projects need Bond Authorization

Bond Fund/Division/Program FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY2026-27 FY 2027-28 FY 2028-29 FY 2029-30 FY 2030-31 FY 2031-32 FY 2032-33 FY 2033-34 Ten Year Total

411 - Streets GO Bonds 26,308,000          47,278,865           24,919,975              50,900,200                  11,530,500          27,742,500           26,646,500          19,167,500            19,926,500        17,749,500        272,170,040            
Cultural Development Capital 2,600,000            500,000                2,020,000                -                                 -                        -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      5,120,000                
6CA671 - Downtown Alley Projects 2,600,000                 500,000                     2,020,000                     -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          5,120,000                     
Streets Capital 20,094,000          46,778,865           22,899,975              47,822,200                  10,615,500          19,359,500           17,111,500          19,167,500            19,926,500        17,749,500        241,525,040            
6ST248 - Street Repaving 7,144,000                 1,144,000                 13,144,000                   7,144,000                          7,144,000                7,144,000                 7,144,000                 7,144,000                  7,144,000              7,144,000              71,440,000                   
6ST303 - Street Construction - Various Improvements 800,000                    800,000                     800,000                         800,000                             800,000                    800,000                     800,000                    800,000                      800,000                 800,000                 8,000,000                     
6ST322 - Traffic Signals Improvements and Repairs 2,480,000                 1,844,500                 1,656,500                     1,284,500                          1,184,500                1,779,500                 1,104,500                 1,976,500                  1,354,500              1,354,500              16,019,500                   
6ST692 - Chandler Heights Road (McQueen to Val Vista) 330,300                    -                             -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          330,300                        
6ST693 - Lindsay Road (Ocotillo Road to Hunt Highway) 1,122,300                 -                             -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          1,122,300                     
6ST702 - Washington Street Improvements -                             3,008,000                 -                                 9,833,000                          -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          12,841,000                   
6ST719 - Collector Street Improvements 2,826,000                 3,019,000                 -                                 109,000                             112,000                    1,204,000                 -                             -                              -                          -                          7,270,000                     
6ST737 - Kyrene Road (Chandler Boulevard to Santan 202) -                             1,082,000                 633,000                         11,906,000                        -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          13,621,000                   
6ST747 - Alma School Road (Germann Road to Queen Creek Road) -                             10,006,000               -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          10,006,000                   
6ST754 - Ray Road/Dobson Road Intersection Improvement 1,335,200                 13,305,565               -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          14,640,765                   
6ST774 - Warner Road (Price Rd to Arizona Ave) -                             -                             -                                 357,000                             -                            -                             -                             -                              7,210,000              6,344,000              13,911,000                   
6ST781 - Ray Road/Kyrene Road -                             -                             -                                 -                                      408,000                    -                             -                             -                              3,218,000              1,907,000              5,533,000                     
6ST786 - Arizona Ave/Warner Rd Intersection 1,257,300                 -                             -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          1,257,300                     
6ST787 - Turf To Xeriscape Program 2,798,900                 5,565,000                 5,759,000                     -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          14,122,900                   
6ST790 - Unpaved Alley Program -                             3,876,000                 200,000                         200,000                             200,000                    200,000                     200,000                    200,000                      200,000                 200,000                 5,476,000                     
6ST792 - Price Rd/ Queen Creek Rd Intersection Improvement -                             3,128,800                 707,475                         15,466,700                        -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          19,302,975                   
6ST793 - McQueen Road Improvements (Warner Rd to Pecos Rd) -                             -                             -                                 722,000                             767,000                    8,232,000                 7,863,000                 9,047,000                  -                          -                          26,631,000                   
Transportation Policy Capital 3,614,000            -                         -                            3,078,000                     915,000               8,383,000             9,535,000             -                          -                      -                      25,525,000              
6TP750 - Frye Road Protected Bike Lanes 1,338,000                 -                             -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          1,338,000                     
6TP752 - Ashley Trail/Paseo Trail Connection 817,000                    -                             -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          817,000                        
6TP753 - Ocotillo Road Shared Use Path -                             -                             -                                 3,078,000                          915,000                    8,383,000                 9,535,000                 -                              -                          -                          21,911,000                   
6TP767 - Kyrene Branch and Highline Canal Shared Use Paths 1,459,000                 -                             -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          1,459,000                     
412 - Storm Sewer GO Bonds 150,000                -                         150,000                    -                                 150,000               -                         150,000                -                          150,000             -                      750,000                   
Streets Capital 150,000                -                         150,000                    -                                 150,000               -                         150,000                -                          150,000             -                      750,000                   
6ST291 - Miscellaneous Storm Drain Improvements 150,000                    -                             150,000                         -                                      150,000                    -                             150,000                    -                              150,000                 -                          750,000                        
420 - Park GO Bonds 5,159,000            26,733,000           39,793,990              11,309,330                  42,132,000          54,722,000           5,993,000             8,597,000              2,600,000          3,350,000          190,389,320            
Cultural Development Capital -                        10,914,000           3,967,000                1,100,000                     783,000               7,836,000             400,000                3,120,000              -                      -                      28,120,000              
6CA650 - Dr. AJ Chandler Park -                             10,000,000               -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          10,000,000                   
6CA670 - Tumbleweed Ranch -                             914,000                     3,967,000                     1,100,000                          783,000                    7,836,000                 400,000                    3,120,000                  -                          -                          18,120,000                   
Parks Capital 5,159,000            15,819,000           35,826,990              10,209,330                  41,349,000          46,886,000           5,593,000             5,477,000              2,600,000          3,350,000          162,269,320            
6PR049 - Existing Neighborhood Park Improvements/Repairs 837,000                    737,000                     837,000                         700,000                             2,418,000                10,357,000               3,793,000                 3,677,000                  800,000                 800,000                 24,956,000                   
6PR398 - Mesquite Groves Park Site Phase I (SDF Loan Bond Issuance) -                             10,000,000               -                                 -                                      -                            
6PR398 - Mesquite Groves Park Site Phase II -                             -                             30,263,000                   -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          30,263,000                   
6PR399 - Mesquite Groves Park Site Phase III -                             -                             -                                 -                                      500,000                    34,729,000               -                             -                              -                          -                          35,229,000                   
6PR530 - Existing Community Park Improvements/Repairs 2,237,000                 1,437,000                 2,937,000                     2,300,000                          800,000                    800,000                     800,000                    800,000                      800,000                 1,550,000              14,461,000                   
6PR629 - Lantana Ranch Park Site -                             -                             1,004,990                     5,741,330                          -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          6,746,320                     
6PR630 - Existing Community/Recreation Centers Improvements/Repairs 1,585,000                 1,204,000                 785,000                         750,000                             1,000,000                1,000,000                 1,000,000                 1,000,000                  1,000,000              1,000,000              10,324,000                   
6PR650 - Folley Pool Renovation 500,000                    2,441,000                 -                                 -                                      17,745,000              -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          20,686,000                   
6PR651 - Tumbleweed Multi-Gen Expansion -                             -                             -                                 718,000                             18,886,000              -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          19,604,000                   
441 - Public Facility GO Bonds 4,522,000            8,520,000             4,526,000                4,526,000                     4,526,000            4,526,000             4,092,000             1,812,000              -                      -                      37,050,000              
Buildings and Facilities Capital 4,522,000            2,520,000             4,526,000                4,526,000                     4,526,000            4,526,000             4,092,000             1,812,000              -                      -                      31,050,000              
6BF628 - Existing City Building Renovations/Repairs 4,522,000                 2,520,000                 4,526,000                     4,526,000                          4,526,000                4,526,000                 4,092,000                 1,812,000                  -                          -                          31,050,000                   
Development Services Capital -                        6,000,000             -                            -                                 -                        -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      6,000,000                
6DS736 - Traffic Management Center -                             6,000,000                 -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          6,000,000                     
460 - Public Safety GO Bonds - Police 5,259,000            50,081,000           1,492,000                10,527,000                  4,759,000            11,199,000           -                        -                          -                      -                      83,317,000              
Police Capital 5,259,000            50,081,000           1,492,000                10,527,000                  4,759,000            11,199,000           -                        -                          -                      -                      83,317,000              
6PD652 - Forensic Services Facility 5,259,000                 50,081,000               -                                 -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          55,340,000                   
6PD653 - Police Main Station Renovations -                             -                             1,492,000                     10,527,000                        4,759,000                11,199,000               -                             -                              -                          -                          27,977,000                   
470 - Public Safety GO Bonds - Fire -                        -                         2,633,000                -                                 2,497,000            14,264,000           5,158,000             17,463,000            -                      -                      42,015,000              
Fire Capital (note: $10M auth remaining but cannot start construction on #284 since short) 2,633,000                -                                 2,497,000            14,264,000           5,158,000             17,463,000            -                      -                      42,015,000              
6FI653 - Rebuild Fire Station #284  -                             -                             -                                 -                                      2,497,000                14,264,000               -                             -                              -                          -                          16,761,000                   
6FI656 - Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Replacements -                             -                             2,633,000                     -                                      -                            -                             -                             -                              -                          -                          2,633,000                     
6FI658 - Fire Station 12 (SDF Loan Bond Issuance) -                             -                             -                                 -                                      -                            -                             5,158,000                 17,463,000                -                          -                          22,621,000                   

Grand Total 41,398,000      132,612,865    73,514,965         77,262,530             65,594,500      112,453,500    42,039,500      47,039,500       22,676,500    21,099,500    625,691,360       

Total Planned GO Bond Funded Projects without Bond Authorization 31,755,000                  70,286,530                       58,421,500             107,927,500            37,797,500              45,227,500               22,676,500           21,099,500           395,191,530                

8/2/2024



ITEM  2 

Library Board      Community Services 
       

Date: 09/17/2024
To: Library Board
From: Courtney Allen, Management Analyst
Subject: Library Manager's Report

Overview
Welcome back after our summer break! I hope everyone found time to connect
with family and friends, read a good book or two, and escape the heat.

Chandler Public Library had an incredibly successful Summer Reading Challenge
this year, with registration numbers far exceeding previous years. I'm so incredibly
proud of our staff members across the system for their hard work. Please see the
Programming section below for additional details.

September is Library Card Sign-Up Month, and our card campaign is underway.
We have three limited-edition card styles that are available now for new members,
while existing cardholders can opt to upgrade to a new card beginning October 1st
for a $2 replacement fee. Big thanks to the Friends for co-sponsoring this initiative.

Our bookmobile project is proceeding on schedule for a spring/summer launch.
Jo-el Miller and I will be visiting Farber Specialty Vehicles in September to finalize
layout and design selections for the vehicle. 

The planning for Hamilton Library improvements continues, with the project design
phase nearing 60% completion. 

Staff development day is October 14th, so each of our four branches will be
closed for training, development and team-building activities.

 



Branch Updates

Basha Branch 
Similar to the other branches, we had a wonderful Summer Reading
Challenge! 
We had a wonderful group of teen volunteers who helped us day-in and
day-out.
One of our system-wide initiatives, Writer in Residence, is going extremely
well. Author Robrt Pela is doing a wonderful job with his creative writing
expertise. 
Our school parking issue from last year has been exponentially better!
Signage from the school seems to have helped.
We have two new staff members joining us, Marilee and Bibianna. We're
super excited to be fully staffed! 
Harry Potter's Birthday program went well; about 55 people total! 
Monsters Storytime & Camping Family Fun Night were a blast! 

Author Lindsay Gonzales helped with the Camping Family Fun Night and
it was great.

Reintroduced "Every Child Ready to Read" programming in August. 
Good turnout, families loved the 5 Little Monkeys theme.

Teen services is humming along. Author James Ramos joined us for an
author visit.

Downtown Branch 
Join us for CHANDLER CONTIGO Dia de Fiesta, sponsored by the city's DEI
office, on Saturday, September 21, 2024, from 9:30 a.m. to 2 p.m. The event
will begin with a warm welcome from Mayor Hartke, followed by a poetry
reading by Arizona’s poet laureate, Alberto Rios. Enjoy Mariachi music,
Luchadores, crafts, and fun activities! We hope to see you there!
The LSTA grant-funded Beginning Spanish and Japanese classes and
drop-in Spanish Conversation sessions began in August. Registration for the
beginner classes is now full.
The exterior of the Downtown Library is getting a facelift, with the tiles and
windows being regrouted and sealed.
The Downtown Library remains part of the "I am the CITY" tours. Charles and
Timothy take visitors through the Makery, showcasing the laser cutter, 3D
printer, and recording equipment. They also highlight the rest of the library,
including the Book & Board Library lounge, where patrons can enjoy games
and grab snacks.



Hamilton Branch 
We continue to move forward with the Capital Project headed towards the
60% completion of Plans in September. We are excited to add a Circulation
Room for staff and Study Rooms for our patrons.
Summer Reading Challenge was wildly successful. Programming at Hamilton
was well attended, we hosted over 400 patrons for our Wildman Phil event.
Our teen summer volunteers were amazing and were a big part of our
success this year. Thanks to staff and volunteers for all the hard work and
enthusiasm.
Hamilton Robotics Club shared a six-week program called Operation First:
Intro into the World of FRC Robotics. This program provided a fun and
exciting look into robotics, which was very well received in our Hamilton
Community.
Our four-week program, Girls Who Code: Drawing with JavaScript with
Hamilton’s Girls Who Code Club, starts Saturday, September 21, and is
always popular.
We are excited about our fall events. Some of the Contigo events include a
Quinceanera Fashion Show Fiesta, Hamilton Fiesta de a Familia event, and
Folk Art Amate Painting. Some of our other Fall Programs include a Mo
Willems Party for the 0-5 age group and a Diwali Family Festival.

Sunset Branch 
We had a very successful Summer Reading Challenge with more than 50
teen volunteers helping people sign-up and claim prizes. 
Sunset youth staff went to Nozomi Pool three times in June, July, and August
to present Storytimes at the Pool.
We continue to write new stories for the StoryWalks at Desert Breeze and
Sunset Parks, finishing out a grant from the State Library and with support
from the Friends of Chandler Public Library.
We have a new Youth Services Librarian who moved here from Yuma to
work at Chandler Sunset Library. She has been a great addition to our team.
Seed Swap is coming up in September, as well as a couple of adult programs
from Water Wise and Our Stories.
Two of our youth staff will be attending the Arizona Library Association
conference in Scottsdale in October.
Sunset Fiesta and several other programs will happen again this year, in
October, to celebrate Chandler Contigo.

Outreach 



Outreach 
Library staff presented monthly storytimes at Hamilton and Nozomi aquatic
centers for nearly 200 participants. After the 20-minute storytimes, attendees
enjoyed 30 minutes of free pool play in the children's area. This has been a
great partnership with the City's Aquatics team.
Two outreach staff members will attend the 2024 Association of Bookmobiles
and Outreach Services Conference in Indianapolis this October. We look
forward to bringing back ideas for serving our community through the mobile
library.

Collections and Statistics
In August we went live with Novelist BookChat, which offers live online book
recommendations and readers' advisory Monday through Saturday, 1:00 p.m.
– 9:00 p.m. ET, and email responses within a day outside those hours.

June 1, 2024 70,285
July 1, 2024 70,789
August 1, 2024 70,566
September 1, 2024 71,057

Active Cardholders

May 2024 115,429
June 2024 128,654
July 2024 128,767
August 2024 121,661

Physical Item Checkouts

  

May 2024 22,496
June 2024 23,047
July 2024 23,544
August 2024 22,625

cloudLibrary Checkouts

  

May 2024 142 Borrowed, 130 Loaned
June 2024 162 Borrowed, 152 Loaned
July 2024 139 Borrowed, 110 Loaned
August 2024 179 Borrowed, 143 Loaned

MCLD MAX Usage



Programming

Summer Reading Program 2024  
Over 97,000 people in Maricopa County participated in the "Adventure Begins
at Your Library" reading program. You'll be pleased to know that Chandler
Public Library ranked third among all library systems in the County for the
number of participants! Only Maricopa County Library District and Phoenix
Public Library system had more people registered than us! Chandler had
12,800 people registered and read more than 13 million minutes over the two
month challenge, with 51% of participants reaching the 1000-point finish line.
This is the highest number of participants we have seen in the past 10 years.  
We had an increase in participation in age groups, but especially outstanding
is the 32% increase in kids ages 5-12 and 63% in adult participants!! 
We ran over 460 programs this summer, which included ongoing programs
like storytimes, special summer reading events, and special programs such
as the CUSD Free Summer Lunch program. We had over 21,000 people
participate in our programs this summer!

September through November Programming Highlights 
  

Chandler Contigo: September 5-October 15

Every year, the City of Chandler hosts a series of events under the title Chandler
Contigo, acknowledging the heritage of approximately a quarter of our city's
population. One of the flagship events of Chandler Contigo 2024 is  ¡Dia de
Fiesta!, which will be held on Saturday, September 21, from 9:30 a.m. to 2 p.m.
inside and outside the Chandler Downtown Library. We will have strolling
mariachis, Ballet Folklorico performances, kids crafts and face paintng, a
presentation from poet Alberto Ríos, masked wrestler demonstrations, food trucks
and more outside. As the month-long celebration progresses, all four Chandler
Library sites will host their own unique events. These include a Quinceañera
Fashion Show at the Hamilton branch, an indoor-outdoor family celebration at the
Sunset branch, art programs for all ages, historical presentations, and special
Storytime sessions for babies, infants, and young children.
  

Water-Wise Workshops: September through October

Our partnership continues with City of Chandler Water Conservation and their
effort to promote water sustainability for Chandler. Downtown, Hamilton, and
Sunset libraries will host a series of programs that provide information and how-to
tips on composting, vermiculture, xeriscaping, and desert plant maintenance.
  



Writer in Residence Series: Now through December 18

We are partnering with the Arizona State Library for the Writer-in-Residence
program series, which brings local authors to hold on-on-one writing consultation
sessions as well as special themed workshops. Journalist Robrt Pela will be with
the Basha and Downtown libraries through September 16. Robert Pela is a
Pulliam Prize-winning journalist with a 30-year tenure as a columnist for the
Phoenix city weekly, New Times. YA author Amy Fellner Dominy will join
us October through December at Downtown, Sunset, and Basha. In addition to
her writing, Amy is a playwright and has contributed to productions for Theater in
One Act and A Play in Two Acts.
  

Spanish language classes and drop-in Spanish conversation group

The Downtown library has a Beginning Spanish class now running (registration
required) as well as a Spanish Conversation Group. In the conversation program,
individuals with some Spanish language proficiency meet to talk every Friday from
1-2 p.m. at the Downtown Library. No registration required. 
  

Ready, Set, Kindergarten! Series

These 6-week kindergarten readiness programs will run at various branches
through November 21. Once a session is full, a patron can always check on
registration and dates for the upcoming sessions. 
  

Fall Seed Swap at Sunset

Visit the Sunset Library on September 14 to share seeds, seed starts, and plant
cuttings with your neighbors. Meet local gardeners, master gardeners, and other
community members with the expertise to help you start or maintain your desert
garden, and teach you to conserve when and where you can, and more!
  

Girls Who Code at Hamilton

Chandler Hamilton's Girls Who Code Club teaches girls to learn JavaScript and
use their programming skills to create an interactive, virtual avatar! This 4-week
program, taught by Hamilton's Girls Who Code club, introduces girls ages 9-12 to
the artistic side of computer science in a fun, engaging way.
  

Junior Investors series at Basha

Members of Basha High's DECA Club teach basic budgeting and financial lessons
in this 6 week series to students 9-12 years.
  



Diwali Festival of Lights program series: October 25-early November.

All four Chandler library branches will host family programs in conjunction with the
City of Chandler's Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Division celebrating Indian
culture and heritage. There will be performances, art, and hands-on activities.
  

Storywalk at Sunset Park and Desert Breeze Park

Take a walk and read a picture book in the permanent displays set up around the
parks. Perfect for milder temperatures with children learning to read, but really fun
for any age! Stories change each month, so there is always something new to see.
The schedule is on the library website.

At the May Library Board meeting, Board President Beth Brizel inquired about the
statistics of the 2024 tax preparation services provided at the Chandler libraries in
spring 2024. Below is the breakdown:  

Downtown - AARP: 1,008
Hamilton - VITA: 214
Sunset - VITA: 347

Literacy Programs: 
Kristain Johnston retired in May. Our new Literacy Program Manager,
Lindsay Atwood, was promoted from Outreach Coordinator to fill the position.
The Read to Succeed curriculum was refreshed over the summer to
align with CUSD standards. Tutoring of 1st grade students will start in
October. 
Talk Time conversation group is ongoing. We have six classes weekly. June
& July saw an attendance of 238 students.
Small Group Tutoring classes have nine groups serving 44 students.
Citizenship classes will start in September.

Friends of the Chandler Library
Friends of Chandler Public Library have made a very generous gift of
$240,000 to support Library programs and services, including funds for the
Library's new outreach vehicle.
National Nonprofit Day was August 17 and the Friends of Chandler Public
Library were showcased.
The Downtown Library's used book sales have expanded with the addition of
a new shelving unit.

 



Attachments
Library Programming Presentation 
Library Storytime Statistics 23.24 



Chandle r 
Libra ry 
Prog ramming

2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 5



Yea r 
Tot a l Prog ra ms  Pe r 

Yea r 
Tot a l At t enda nce /  

Eng a g ement
Tot a l Out rea ch 

Eng a g ement

2 0 18 -2 0 19 5 ,7 0 0 13 1,0 0 0 N/A

2 0 19 -2 0 2 0 3 ,4 0 0 7 1,0 0 0 N/A

2 0 2 0 -2 0 2 1 9 0 0 2 6 ,0 0 0 9 2 0

2 0 2 1-2 0 2 2 2 ,9 0 0 5 7 ,0 0 0 6 ,4 0 0

2 0 2 2 -2 0 2 3 4 ,6 0 0 10 5 ,0 0 0 12 ,0 0 0

2 0 2 3 -2 0 2 4 4 ,2 0 0 10 2 ,0 0 0 14 ,9 0 0

Annua l Prog ra mming  Numbers  



2 0 2 1-2 0 2 2 2 0 2 2 -2 0 2 3 2 0 2 3 -2 0 2 4

Ag e s  0 -5 2 3 ,0 0 0 3 1,0 0 0 3 6 ,0 0 0

Ag e s  6 -12 7 ,0 0 0 8 ,0 6 2 11,5 0 0

Te e n 12 ,0 0 0 2 7 ,5 0 0 2 1,5 0 0

Adult s  9 ,5 0 0 12 ,5 0 0 13 ,5 0 0

Number Se rved by Age  Group



Yea r Overa ll Reg is t e red
Overa ll Finis he rs

(10 0 0  Minut e s )
Pe rcent a g e Finis hed

2 0 2 4 12 ,7 9 4 6 ,7 7 4 5 1%

2023 9 ,4 9 7 4 ,74 4 5 0%

2022 9 ,24 6 4 ,3 5 2 4 7%

2021 7,3 24 3 ,9 25 5 3 %

2020 4 ,8 01 3 ,13 8 65 %

2019 10 ,73 7 5 ,63 9 5 2%

S ummer Rea ding  Cha lleng e



S ummer Rea ding  Cha lleng e

Sep 13 is the last game being 
offe red for free  t o 
pa rt icipant s

Phoe nix Me rcury t icke t s

Las t  day for pa rt icipant s  t o 
orde r a  book. (16  t it le s  have  
been removed from t he  
books t ore , out  of s t ock)

Aug  15

2025 : Color Your World- a rt

2026 : Unea rt h A S t ory- 
dinosaurs / a rchaeology/ 
pa leont ology

Wha t ’s  coming  ?

Las t  day t o pick up prize s . So 
fa r book shipment s  have  not  
expe rienced de lays  like  
previous  yea rs . 

S e p 15



Pa rt icipa nt s  2 0 2 3
Pe rcent a g e  of 
Finis he rs  2 0 2 3

Pa rt icipa nt s  2 0 2 4
Pe rcent a g e  of 
Finis he rs  2 0 2 4

Basha 14 9 5 5 2% 19 8 3 5 2%

Downtown 3 23 8 4 6% 4 673 5 0%

Hamilton 263 2 5 3 % 3 178 5 1%

Sunse t  213 2 5 5 % 29 60 5 4 %

Tota l for CPL 9 ,4 9 7 5 0% 12,79 4 5 1%

Sum m e r Re ad in g Ch a lle n ge  
Part ic ip a t io n  b y Lo ca t io n

• 97,025 participated in Maricopa County Reads  (48% finisher rate) 

• Only Phoenix Public system (25,500) and Maricopa County Library District (16, 700) 
were higher in participation than Chandler. (Mesa finished with 12,000) 



Ag e  Groups Pa rt icipa nt s  2 0 2 3 Pa rt icipa nt s  2 0 2 4 Pe rcent  Increa s e

Ages 0 -4 1160 13 65 18 %

Kids 4 28 2 5 64 3 3 2%

Teens 14 5 3 15 4 5 6%

Adult s 2602 4 24 1 63 %

Tota l for CPL 9 ,4 9 7 12,79 4 3 5 %

Sum m e r Re ad in g Ch a lle n ge  
Part ic ip a t io n  b y Age

• Top five Chandler Unified Schools in participation: CTA Independence, Knox Gifted, 
Weinberg, ACP (Middle), and CTA Freedom

• Top five Kyrene Schools in participation: Cielo, Norte, Mirada, Paloma, and Brisas 
• High school participation: Hamilton (111), Corona del Sol (95), Basha (85), Chandler 

High (67), and Perry (58)



Most Recent Program Attended in Last 3 Months

• About 1200 people took the survey

• 41 % attended a program in last 3 
months

• 40 % of respondents were 55+
• 25 % were 26 -45
• 25 % were 26 -35

• 45 % selected Library website as  
main way people heard about 
programs; next largest was word 
of mouth. Flyers and e -newsletter 
ranked next. 

2 0 2 4  Prog ra mming  S urve y



Popula r Words  From t he  S urve y 



“Wha t  you like  a nd wha t  you would  a t t end” 
Ove ra ll Ma in Topics  

• Book clubs  (for va rious  a g es  a nd g enre s )
• Ga rdening  a nd la nds ca ping
• Children’s  s t oryt imes  a nd a ct ivit ie s
• Art s  a nd cra ft s  for children a nd a dult s
• S TEM/ S TEAM prog ra ms  for children a nd t weens
• Ga me  a nd puzzle  event s
• Environment a l a nd s us t a ina bilit y t opics

• Comput e r a nd t echnolog y cla s s e s  (e s pecia lly for s eniors )
• Fina ncia l lit e ra cy a nd re t irement  p la nning
• Loca l his t ory, g enea log y works hops , & Arizona -s pecific  t opics
• La ng ua g e  lea rning , pa rt icula rly S pa nis h
• Aut hor event s ; Writ ing  works hops  a nd g roups
• Cooking  demons t ra t ions  a nd cla s s e s
• Mus ic a nd cult ura l event s
• Hea lt h a nd we llne s s  prog ra ms
• Tra ve l pre s ent a t ions  a nd dis cus s ions
• Ca ree r deve lopment  a nd job  s ea rch a s s is t a nce  



Ot he r Comment s  t o Not e  
• Programs helping to build a community and social networking 

important

• Mixed age events were mentioned as desirable

• Suggestions for after work programs, evenings and weekend 
programs

• “Adult late night recess” program was referenced as an interest 

• Assistance with existing digital resources

• A few requests for specialized or inclusive programs for people 
with disabilities and autism, including sensory activities 



In This  Mont h You pla n for t his mont h
S ubmit  Prog ra m propos a l 

a nd s upe rvis or a pprova l by…
Add t o Event Ca lenda r for 

review by…
S upe rvis or review of 

event  lis t ing comple t e  by
Event s  will be publis hed  

in firs t week of..

Oct obe r Ja nua ry 1-Oct 15 -Oct 3 1-Oct November

November Februa ry 1-Nov 15 -Nov 3 0 -Nov December

December Ma rch 1-Dec 15 -Dec 3 0 -Dec Ja nua ry

Ja nua ry April 1-Ja n 15 -Ja n 3 1-Ja n Februa ry

Februa ry Ma y 1-Feb 15 -Feb 2 8 -Feb Ma rch

Ma rch June 1-Ma r 15 -Ma r 3 1-Ma r April

April July 1-Apr 15 -Apr 3 0 -Apr Ma y

Ma y Aug us t 1-Ma y 15 -Ma y 3 0 -Ma y June

June S ept ember 1-Jun 15 -Jun 3 0 -Jun July

July Oct obe r 1-Jul 15 -Jul 3 1-Jul Aug us t

Aug us t November 1-Aug 15 -Aug 3 1-Aug S ept ember

S ept ember December 1-S ep 15 -S ep 3 0 -S ep Oct obe r

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
Ti

m
el

in
e



• Sep 14- Hamilton: Quinceanera 
Fashion Show Fiesta

• Corona del Sol Art Exhibit
• Sep 16- Lowrider Storytime @ 

Makery
• Sep 21- Downtown: Dia de Fiesta
• Sep 30- Puzzle Tournaments 

begins
• Oct 5 - Sunset Fiesta 
• Oct 7- Basha Hispanic Heritage 

Craft Night 
• Oct 12- Wisdom of Ancient 

Healing Arts

S e pt  14 - Oct  15
• Baby Time , Toddle r Time , 

Pre school Time  and Family 
Time  re t urn Sep 2

• St oryt ime  @ Makery 
(s t orie s  and making)

• Bilingua l S t oryt ime- 
s t orie s  and fun in Spanish 
and Eng lish

• Family Fun Night - s t orie s , 
play and cra ft  

• STEAM Club 
• STEAM Jr. 
• Lego Club
• Basha  Build It  
• STEAM St a t ions
• Girls  Who Code  se rie s  - 

drawing  wit h JavaScript

Coming  in S ept embe r a nd Oct obe r 



• Downtown Aug 20 - Sep 5

• Sunset Sep 5 - Oct 10

• Hamilton Oct 17 - Nov 21

• Downtown Nov 5 - Nov 21

• Basha- January start 

• New curriculum - follows 
UFLI Foundations and the 
Science of Reading

• Will continue at the 
Downtown and Basha 
Libraries

• Aligned with CUSD 
curriculum

• ART Now
• Inktober Journals
• Scribble Squad - Journaling
• Get Crafty! 
• Mo Willems Party
• Junior Investors - Finance basics for 

ages 9-12
• AMS Hangout
• Yarn & Hook Crochet Club (with 

teen)

Coming  in S ept embe r a nd Oct obe r 



Wa t e r-Wis e  Works hops  Writ e r-in-Res idence  

• Adult  workshops  in 
pa rt ne rship wit h Wat e r 
Conse rva t ion

• Topics  such a s  compos t ing , 
wa t e r sources  and 
sus t a inabilt y, ca re  for plant s  
in t he  dese rt , and crea t ing  
xe ris cape  landscaping  

S e p 11 - Oct  2 2

• Robrt  Pe la - journa lis t  
⚬ t hrough Sept  18

• Amy F. Dominy- Pict ure  
book, YA aut hor, playwright
⚬ Oct  3  - Nov 21

• Pre -scheduled one  on one  
consula t ions

• Drop in writ e r workshops

S e pt  2 - Nov 2 1
Ba s ha , Downt own, S uns e t  

• Downt own- Book Love r Group, Night  Owl 
Book Club, COC Employee  Book g roup

• Hamilt on- Romance  and Fict ion Book 
Groups

• Sunse t - Mys t e ry Round Table
• Drum group programs
• Mahjong  and Role  playing  t able  t op
• Squeaky Toys  for a  Cause
• Diamond Pa int ing
• Genograms  and Family His t orie s
• Our S t orie s  his t ory se rie s
• Writ ing  Group a t  Downt own
• Sewing  and fibe r a rt s , cra ft s , coloring
• Job Cent e r, Communit y a s s is t ance

Coming  in S ept embe r a nd Oct obe r 



English as a Second 
Language

• Talk Time
• Small Group 

La ng ua g e  Lea rning   
for Adult s

Beginning  Japanese

• Clas ses

Beg inning  Spanish

• Clas ses
• Conversa t ion 

Group

Special Talk Time at the 
Chandler Museum

Sept 19



Briefly elaborate on what you 
want  t o discuss . 

Add a  ma in pointCit izenship Workshop (7 or 9  weeks )

• Tues  6 -7pm St a rt s  Sept  3
• Sa t  11a -12pm St a rt s  Sept  28

Cit izens hip  
Cla s s e s
Downt own Libra ry

Get  Informed: New Execut ive  
Order Expands  Pa ths  t o 
Pe rmanent  Res idency

• Sa t , Sept  19  



Ha lloween! 

• Halloween Ghost Wall 
Hanging

• Haunted Arizona history
• Paranormal Ghost Tour at 

the Downtown Library
• Halloween themed 

storytimes and STEAM 
programs 

• DEI would like to partner
• Potentially provide funds 

for a single program at 
each branch

• Oct 28 - Family Fun Night: 
Happy Diwali

• Nov 2- Saturday program 
at Downtown

• Let Jean know what you 
are considering

Diwali Festival of 
Lights, Nov 1 

• Hamilton
⚬ Genre  and Frees t yle  Book Groups
⚬ Girls  Who Code
⚬ Pee r Tut oring

• Basha
⚬ Teen Sa lsa  Tas t e  Tes t  
⚬ Aft e rschool Tut oring  

• Downt own
⚬ Crys t a l Sunca t che rs
⚬ Smash Bros  Compe t it ion, Teen Gaming
⚬ Yarn & Hook Croche t  Club

• Teen Advisory Groups
• Teen Volunt ee r Overviews
• Aft e r School Hang  out  programs

Coming  in S ept embe r a nd Oct obe r 



Ha lloween! 

Patrons can reserve 
equipment  such a s  Cricut , 
Glowforge  la se r cut t e r, 3 D 
print e r, and s t udio equipment

Ta lk wit h Cha rle s  or 
Timot hy if you wa nt  t o us e  
t he  Ma ke ry equipment  a s  
a  re s ource  for your 
upcoming  prog ra m 

Ongoing  Makery programs  
from Overviews  and Glowforge  
t ra inings  t o specia l s e rie s  

DIY a t  Downt own

STEAM Kit s  t ha t  can be  
checked out  by s t a ff for yout h 
STEAM programs  

Dig it a l Art  wit h Ske t chbook 
se rie s : Sep- Nov 



S ys t emwide  
Gra b & Go 
Act ivit y Kit s  
2 0 2 4 -2 5

S ept  16
Downt own

Cha ndle r Cont ig o
FAMILY/ YOUTH

Ma r 3
Ba s ha

Theme  TBD
FAMILY/ YOUTH

Oct  18
S uns e t  

Art /  Cra ft  
TEEN

Apr 11
Ha milt on

Theme  TBD
ADULT

Nov 8
Downt own

Holida y ca rds  for home le s s
ADULT 

Ma y 2
Downt own & 

Ba s ha

Tiny Art  S how
S RC promot ion

ADULT

Dec 6
Ha milt on

Cha ndle r for t he  Holida ys
FAMILY/ YOUTH

Ma y 16
Downtown

Color Your World  S RC 
promot ion

TEEN

Ja n 17
Ba s ha

Theme  TBD
TEEN

Ma y 2 3
S uns e t

Color Your World
S RC Promot ion

FAMILY/ YOUTH

Feb 3
Downt own

Ma kery & S TEAM Promot ion
AGE TBD

OUTREACH 
THROUGHOUT 

YEAR

Themes  a s  needed, for 
out rea ch e ffort s  



November December Ja nua ry Februa ry

• Diwali Festival of Lights (Nov 
1)

• Pride in Chandler  (Nov 16)
• Native  American  Heritage
• National Novel Writing 

Month

• Chandler for the 
Holidays (Nov 27 - Dec 
31)

• Dec 2- Jan 3: Break in 
storytimes and STEAM 

• Chandler Multicultural 
Festival (Jan 18)

• Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 
(Jan 20)

• Lunar New Year (Jan 29)

• STEAM & Makery  
promotion - AZ SciTech 
Festival

• Chandler Innovation Fair 
(Feb 22)

• Black History Month

March April May June & July 

• In-n-Out Spring Reading (Mar 
8- Apr 12)

• Local Author Fair (March 1) 
• Celebration of stories theme
• Women’s History Month

• Jazz on the Move- 
Chandler Jazz Festival 
(Apr 5)

• Asian American & Pacific 
Islander Heritage

• Break in storytime and 
STEAM

• Summer Reading 
Challenge - Color Your 
World

• Pride Month
• Juneteenth Celebration

Upcoming  Init ia t ives  and Theme  Ideas



Thank you for all your 
hard work! 

QUES TIONS ? 





Storytime Name Jun-23 Jul-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 Jun-24 Jul-24
Total 

Summer 
2023

Total 
Summer 

2024

Basha Baby Time 98 71 86 104 50 79 72 64 87 90 108* 169 198

Toddler Time 169 147 203 155 160 153 141

Preschool Time 155 141 125 91 173 97 114

Family Time 182 185 18 33 24 16 6 18 30 163 194* 367 357

Downtown Baby Time 161 171 203 164 180 176 166 137 140 164 217* 332 381

Toddler Time 541 527 739 805 494 471 647 638 776 641 794* 1068 1435

Preschool Time 415 328 375 249 204 232 268 294 294 378 592* 743 970

Family Time 31 30 28 6 16 40 27* 61 67

Hamilton Baby Time 157 124 232 258 188 207 227 284 367 250 288* 281 518

Toddler Time 209 193 137 138 145 96 143 137 233 245 361 402 606

Preschool Time 345 320 265 310 468 252 292 276 452 313 341* 665 654

Sunset Baby Time 96 125 113 138 152 197 177

Toddler Time 251 261 238 215 257 422 500

Preschool Time 350 404 147 282 302 215 403

Family Time 548 501 264 257 207 230 258 219 285 610 713* 1049 1323

CPL Monthly Storytime Attendance June 2023- July 2024



ITEM  3 

Library Board      Community Services
       

Date: 09/17/2024
To: Library Board
From: Courtney Allen, Management Analyst
Subject: Library Board Minutes

Subject:
Library Board Minutes

Agenda Item Title:
May 21, 2024 Library Board Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move Library Board to approve the minutes of the May 21, 2024 Library Board
meeting.

Attachments
Library Board Minutes 5.21.2024 



Meeting Minutes 

Library Board Regular Meeting 
 

 

May 21, 2024| 6:30 p.m. 

Basha Library  

5990 S. Val Vista Dr. Chandler, AZ 85249 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Board President Beth Brizel at 6:30p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Commission Attendance     Staff Attendance 

Board President Beth Brizel – Virtually Present Rachelle Kuzyk, Library Manager 

Board member Bob Lowry – Present   Courtney Allen, Management Analyst 

Board member Michael McElhany – Not Present Sue Van Horne, Assistant Library Manager 

Board member Arman Sidhu – Present   Chris McGinley, Basha Branch Manager 

Board member Alexis Merritt – Present  Caryn Nall, Hamilton Branch Manager 

Board member Jennifer Pawlik – Present 

Board member Parker McCarthy – Present 

 

Unscheduled Public Appearances 
None 

 

Information Items 
1. Please welcome our two new Library Board Members; Jennifer Pawlik and Parker 

McCarthy. Board Member Palafox has resigned, and Board Member Munoz's term 

has expired. 

The Board held a round table of introductions to introduce themselves to the new board 

members. 

Board member Pawlik has lived in Chandler since 2008, is an avid reader, and feels honored to be 

part of the board.  

Board member McCarthy has lived in Chandler for about eight years, in Arizona for 17, and is 

originally from the Chicago area. Board member McCarthy has a young son who goes to Chandler 

schools and he loves what the library does for his son and wanted to get involved to see how he 

can help. 

 



Page 2 of 6 
 

Consent Agenda 
1. March 19, 2024 Library Board Meeting Minutes 

Motion to approve the minutes was made by Board member Lowry, Board member Sidhu 

seconded. Motion passed 6-0. 

 

Briefing 
1. Library Manager’s Report – Rachelle Kuzyk 

The Library Manager’s Report was provided to the Library Board in advance of the meeting for 

Board member’s review.  

 

Board President Brizel inquired what school the first grade Read to Succeed program came from. 

Sue Van Horne informed the board that the students were from Chandler elementary schools 

closest to the downtown library; Galveston, Frye, and San Marcos. 

Board President Brizel commented on how great it is that all four libraries will be cooling centers 

as part of the City’s Heat Relief Station program.  

Board member Brizel also thanked Hamilton staff for the partnership between Hamilton Library 

and the Hamilton Astronomy Club to provide telescopes for students and faculty to experience 

the eclipse.  

Board member Brizel inquired on which schools held the Ready, Set, Kindergarten (RSK) program. 

Rachelle informed the Board that the program is held at the library, as they children are only four- 

and five-year-olds, not quite school age yet.  

Board President Brizel is very thankful to library outreach staff for all they do with the west side 

high school Corona Del Sol, and for always attending all the outreach events to be there for the 

community. 

Board President Brizel inquired on the breakdown of the tax assistance statistics per library. 

Rachelle responded that she will get those results from the Library Programming Manager and 

report back to the board at the September meeting. 

 

Rachelle Kuzyk expanded on a couple of items from the Managers Report.  

The Summer Reading Challenge registration opened May 1, and the actual challenge starts on 

June 1. We have already exceeded 2,000 registrants before the program has started, which is a 

fantastic number. Rachelle suggested to the board to follow the library on social media; Instagram 

and Facebook. In the last eight months our Community Services Department has a brand-new 

marketing team, and along with our Outreach Manager Jo-el Miller they are doing phenomenal 

work. The reels, posts, and the engagement going on right now is unlike anything in the four years 

that Rachelle has been with the library, it is top notch. If you haven’t seen see the Texas Hold'em 

video featuring Sue, you need to seek that out. Staff have received kudos on that from the City 

Communications and Public Affairs Department (CAPA). Board member McCarthy inquired which 

social media platforms the library uses. Rachelle responded that we are on Facebook, Instagram, 

and X. We do not do Tik Tok. 

 



Page 3 of 6 
 

Board member Sidhu inquired on the book vending machine at Sunset. Rachelle informed the 

board that the machine was sent back to the vendor. The machine did not integrate with our 

circulation software. We are still actively looking for something that would allow a grab and go 

type book nook corner or machine, even if it's a little free library that does not require staff. This 

may be the direction we go until we find a good product that dispenses and allows holds pickup. 

Rachelle informed the board that the outreach team, along with our library courier, will be 

responsible for the distribution of materials to fill the machine or potential book nooks in the 

community.  

Rachelle informed the board of the successful garden party at Sunset Library. Sunset Library is 

next to Sunset Park, with a connecting path. Along the path are musical instruments in one 

direction and the permanent storywalk in the other. Board member Sidhu inquired how often the 

storywalks are rotated. Rachelle and Sue responded that staff rotate the stories every three 

months, or if there’s an upcoming holiday, theme, or program they may switch it out to align with 

that. We also have temporary storywalks for staff to put out at special events or for schools to 

borrow.  

Board member Pawlik inquired on the capital project at Hamilton Library. Rachelle gave the board 

background information and updates on the project. There is approximately $800,000 set aside 

for capital improvements to the Hamilton Library. We are working with the architects for a design 

to improve the circulation workflow. The book drop is slightly outside and it's it does not flow well 

with the rest of the facility, so we will be getting an improved circulation work area. The old 

program room was designed to house a small amount of people and is poorly designed with 

concrete poured stairs and barely any space for families to sit down and engage in our programs. 

We moved what used to be the computer lab that was dedicated for high school use onto the floor 

several years ago to convert that space into a usable program room, but we are now trying to get 

a children's programming space in the children's area of the library. Hamilton is the only library 

that does not have any study rooms, so we are trying to add those to make it more consistent with 

the rest of our libraries. We are probably at 20-30% completion on the drawings with the architect 

and are hoping to have those drawings completed by September. Hamilton is the smallest space 

of all the libraries but we can't change the footprint, so we're trying to reevaluate how we're using 

the space and make it better for the school and for the community.  

 

2. Board Member Lowry will report on the funding requests for Friends supported programs 

and events for the 2024/25 fiscal year. 

Board member Lowry gave an update on the Friends of Library and the funding requests received 

from library staff. Requests from the library started coming in April, then three weeks ago the 

Friends met to discuss and modify or approve them. There were 21 different requests for funding 

this year, which was 35% higher than last year, and 100% higher than two years ago. The support 

of the community through book sales and donations to the Friends is what allows the Friends to 

keep pace with everything the library wants. The function of the Friends is to take whatever they 

can get through donations and book sales and turn it around to give it back to the library. The 

Friends have approved funding so far just under $90,000 for fiscal year 2024/25, but it may end 

up being closer to $110,000. Some of the key programs they are supporting are community 



Page 4 of 6 
 

outreach with $6,500, $10,000 for a library card campaign, which was discussed in March and 

Rachelle made her pitch last week, $10,000 for the Grab & Go kits, which were started during 

COVID and have developed a life of their own. The kits have been incredibly successful and are 

still going strong after four years. Staff appreciation and development will receive $8,000, and I 

think we can all agree that staff are very deserving of every penny of that because they are critical 

for the success of the library. The summer reading program will receive $8,000, general library 

programming gets $19,000, and high five early literacy will receive $6,300. These are just some 

highlights, there are many more programs the Friends support. Board member Lowry wants to 

emphasize that the Friends are only able to do what they do because of the generosity and 

support from the community. He feels this year the Friends are going to gross about $110,000 in 

revenue and will be giving it all back. Board member Lowry also informed the board that he just 

signed a check for just under $135,000 for the Library Bookmobile. This is something that the 

Friends have been working towards for a couple of years and they are excited for Chandler’s fifth 

library branch. 

Board President Brizel is very grateful for Board member Lowry and the Friends of the Library for 

all they do to support the library.  

Board member Pawlik inquired if it’s typical that there is a Friends Board member on the Library 

Board. Board member Lowry replied that there is generally not a Friends Board member on the 

Library Board. The Friends are a totally separate non-profit organization. 

 

Discussion 
1. Malori Heppler, Community Services Marketing and Communications Program 

Coordinator, would like to create social media posts that introduce each of our Library 

Board members, for those that are interested. 

Rachelle informed the board that if they are interested in having a professional headshot and a 

biography/profile about their service to the community and why they are serving on the library 

board, Malori will look after coming to a meeting. This is not mandatory, but let Courtney know if 

you are interested and we will coordinate with marketing. 

 

2. Board member Merritt would like to discuss updates to the Book & Board Library 

Lounge; future programming ideas, requesting funds from the Friends to add to the 

collection each year as new and improved board games are released, what 

advertising efforts have been used, and usage statistics. Also, why are the games not 

listed by name, but only as a game collection? Therefore, they are not searchable in 

the catalog. 

Board member Merritt has some follow-up questions on the Book and Board Lounge, as it has 

been open for almost one year. Rachelle responded that the games are now part of the library 

collection, which is under the cataloging and collections team. They have reviewed the statistics, 

which are not overwhelming at this point, but the games are getting used and there is a value in 

having them. At this point in time, this circulation is not warranting an expenditure on additional 

games in the lounge. The lounge is full of games so it is like any collection, we will keep an eye on 



Page 5 of 6 
 

it, but as things get damaged, we don’t need to ask the Friends for funding to replace the games. 

Right now, adding money to the game collection is not a collection priority for us, which isn't to 

say that a year from now that may change. The lounge is still only a year old and a lot of collections 

take time for traction when they're brand new. Library staff are running a program survey right 

now. We have done some good marketing. There is a game of the month featured and Timothy 

from the Makery, who is kind of our gaming expert, looks after writing reviews of the games and 

featuring different ones, so we feel satisfied with where it's at right now. Given the newness of the 

collection and the purpose that it has, Rachelle feels the games are more for in-library use, which 

doesn't always reflect in the circulation numbers. It's an in-house circulation as opposed to an 

actual checkout. Sue Van Horne added that she is pleased with what she is seeing in the lounge 

and the board games. People are coming in, they're playing, they’re taking games into the seating 

area, and they're also playing them within the lounge. Sue wouldn't say she’s seen a lot of activity 

in the Dragon's Den, but that’s a smaller population. The lounge is a small area so we’re happy 

that people are in there playing and bringing their lunch with them or buying snacks. Rachelle 

believes there are two ways to look at the game collection; a collection in the sense that people 

can borrow it and take it home with them, or a program. If it's only a check-out collection, the 

checkout statistics are not there yet. If it's a program, its intent to draw people into the library for 

us to engage with them and give them the space to use it is fulfilled. For now, it's not a collection 

that we need continue to dump money into, but as a program, it's phenomenal right now. So right 

now it is functioning more as a program and program space for the library, as opposed to a 

collection that would be rivaling the DVD, fiction, or picture book circulation. People are just not 

borrowing it to the same extent, but it is getting the same engagement from the community as 

people coming in to sit and read magazines or attend a program or come to our job center. So, 

collection versus program? Rachelle feels it just depends on the philosophy that you take on what 

the library is getting from it, so for Rachelle right now, it is a very successful program. 

Board member Merritt also inquired on browsing the collection online. Rachelle stated the game 

collection was meant to be, at least from the cataloging perspective, a browsing collection and not 

a holdable collection. The intensity of staff resources for the games is a more labor-intensive 

collection to manage than checking in a library book. Sue added that we are not having patrons 

come in asking for games by name or recommending games to purchase.  

 

Members Comments/Announcements 
1. Board member McCarthy inquired as a new library board member, what can he do to help? 

Rachelle responded that there are two different functioning types of library boards; a 

governing library board and an advisory library board. Ours is an advisory library board. 

There are several important policies that this board sets, and they have recently reviewed 

and approved them just in the past year. The sticky one is the collection development policy. 

The board essentially runs interference between the community and City Council when some 

of those controversial political conversations happen. Because board members are 

appointed by council, they serve as the voice to the community. The importance of the 

Freedom of Information and the collection, and development policy, which is the most 



Page 6 of 6 
 

important policy that this group sets. Fines and fees are also set by the library board. Three 

years ago, this library board voted to remove fines. Being a community advocate for the 

library is the primary job as a member of the library board, and of course to show up at the 

meetings and be supportive, ask questions, and bring ideas. Sue and Rachelle are happy to 

give library tours. Chris is happy to give you a tour of the Basha facility while you're here 

tonight. As you rotate through meetings to the different libraries, we always like to have the 

library managers there. Each library has a unique personality and character and so you'll see 

different little things at each of them. Reach out to Rachelle directly and she and Sue will 

coordinate a tour, even if it's a one-on-one tour of the downtown library. Then as we go 

through the other board meetings, we will give you tours of the other facilities.  

 

Calendar 
1.  The next regular meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 17, 2024 at 6:30 p.m., in 

the Hamilton Library Program Room, 3700 S. Arizona Ave. Chandler, AZ 85248. 

 

2. The next Friends of the Library Board meeting will be held on Tuesday, June 4, 2024 at 1:00 

p.m., in the Downtown Library Copper Conference Room, 22 S. Delaware St. Chandler, AZ 85225. 

 

Adjourn 
Motion to adjourn made by Board member Lowry, Board member Sidhu seconded. Motion 

passed. The meeting was adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 

 

 

______________________________     ______________________________ 

Courtney Allen, Board Liaison                                         Beth Brizel, Board President 



ITEM  4 

Library Board      Community Services
       

Date: 09/17/2024
To: Library Board
From: Courtney Allen, Management Analyst
Subject: Chandler Library Board 2025 Meeting Dates

Subject:
Chandler Library Board 2025 Meeting Dates

Agenda Item Title:
Chandler Library Board 2025 Meeting Dates

Proposed Motion:
Move Library Board to approve the 2025 Chandler Library Board meeting dates. 

Attachments
2025 Chandler Library Board Meeting Dates 



 
2025 Meeting Schedule 

Library Board 

Approved: September 17, 2024 

Courtney Allen / 2812 

 

 

Day of Week 

 

 

Date 

 

 

Time 

Location: 

Bldg. Name/Conf. Room 

Name/Street Address 

 

Type of Mtg: 

Study/Regular/ Retreat 
Tuesday January 21, 2025 6:30 p.m. Downtown Library 

22 S. Delaware St. 

Chandler, AZ 85225 

Regular  

     
Tuesday March 18, 2025 6:30 p.m. Basha Library 

5990 S. Val Vista Dr. 

Chandler, AZ 85249 

Regular  

     
Tuesday May 20, 2025 6:30 p.m. Hamilton Library 

3700 S. Arizona Ave. 

Chandler, AZ 85248 

Regular  

     
Tuesday September 16, 

2025 

6:30 p.m. Sunset Library 

4930 W. Ray Rd. 

Chandler, AZ 85226 

Regular  

     
Tuesday November 18, 

2024 

6:30 p.m. Downtown Library 

22 S. Delaware St. 

Chandler, AZ 85225 

Regular  

 


	Agenda
	AI 6782 City Capital Project Funding/Bond Election Discussion led by Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager / Chief Financial Officer
	       ATT_Bond Exploratory Committee Election Process
	       ATT_Board and Commission PPT Capital Funding_Bond Election
	Capital Project Funding�Bond Election Discussion� �
	Agenda
	Strategic Framework  �Capital Needs in All Areas
	2025-2034 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
	Capital Plan Inflation Impacts
	GO Bond Authorization
	GO Bond 10-Year CIP Projects��Refer to Handout�
	Bond Election History
	Previous 2021 Bond Election Results
	Previous 49 Member �Bond Exploratory Election Committee
	Bond Exploratory Sample Committee Timeline
	Who is in “The Same Boat” with Chandler?
	Council Direction
	Questions�

	       ATT_CIP bond only for BC
	CIP For B&C

	AI 6622 Chandler Library Board Managers Report
	       ATT_Library Programming Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23

	       ATT_Library Storytime Statistics 23.24
	AI 6620 Chandler Library Board MInutes
	       ATT_Library Board Minutes 5.21.2024
	AI 6621 Chandler Library Board 2025 Meeting Dates
	       ATT_2025 Chandler Library Board Meeting Dates

